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Airan at a Glance

Deciphering technology
through innovation & delivering
cost effective solutions

Airan Limited
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International Presence

| AIRAN UK LIMITED |

| AIRAN SINGAPORE |
PRIVATE LIMITED

| AIRAN GLOBAL N
PRIVATE LIMITED

| AIRAN AUSTRALIA |
PROPRIETARY

LIMITED

AIRAN GLOBAL PVT LTD.

Regd. Office : 807-808, Signature Building,

International Financial Services Center (IFSC),

Block 13-B, Zone-1, SEZ Area of Gift City,

Gandhinagar-382355, INDIA. e Ph.: +91-79-2646 2233

Email : info@airanglobal.com

Website : www.airanlimited.com, www.airanglobal.com

AIRAN SINGAPORE PVT. L
Regd. Office : 23, KELANTAN LANE, #04-01,

KIM HOE CENTRE, SINGAPORE-208642.

Phone : +65 90093320

Registration No.: 201718562H

Email : contact@airanlimited.com

Website : www.airanlimited.com, www.airanlimited.i

ATRAN UK LTD.

Regd. Office :

20, THE BYE WAY, HARROW,

Ha3 7EF, UNITED KINGDOM.

Registration No.: 11628034

Email : contact@airanlimited.com

Website : www.airanlimited.com ® www.airanlimited.in

AIRAN AUSTRALIA PTY. LTD.

Regd. Office : UNIT 5, 94 MAIN STREET,
BLACKTOWN NSW 2148, AUSTRALIA.
Phone : +61-02-9191 9766

ACN : 631 878 807 » ABN : 87 631 878 807
Email : info@airanglobal.com

Website : www.airanglobal.com

Annual Report 2020-21 Page | 03 of 156




= Letter to Shareholders

Dear Stake holders,

The year 2020 was a very unusual year for all of us. A year that was challenging on multiple fronts, but what stood out was the
extraordinary resilience and adaptability of individuals and enterprises.

We are grateful to the frontline healthcare workers and other support teams who are selflessly and fearlessly serving humanity
during these challenging times. The silver lining is the success of large-scale vaccination in a few countries in controlling the
pandemic thatis giving hope to humanity atlarge.

India was relatively successful in managing the first wave of the pandemic outbreak but unfortunately, the second wave of Covid-19
is spreading the virus much more rapidly across India, including the rural areas which were relatively less impacted in the first
wave. We are cautious and hopeful that with an all-out effort, we will be able to overcome the challenging situation the country is
facing.

As per the World Bank, the global economic output is recovering from the downturn triggered by Covid-19 but it will remain below
pre-pandemic trends for a prolonged period. A well-coordinated response to the pandemic will shape the future of the global
economy for years to come.

We are proud of the resilience AIRAN has shown in this challenging time to ensure personal safety and at the same time, being
classified as essential service provider by the ministry of home affairs in the lockdown period, we could run the operations with very
limited interruptions, which led to a sustained performance during the year.

Our Consolidated Revenue from Operations during the year stood at Rs. 6629.74 lacs, reflecting 14.94% year-on-year (YoY) growth.

Before I conclude, I wish to thank all my fellow Board members, management team, employees, customers, suppliers, regulatory
authorities and our shareholders for their unflinching guidance and continued support throughout the year.

Wishing you all a safe year ahead!
Regards,

=

Sandeep Agrawal
Managing Director
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Dear Shareholders,

I hope that you and your families are keeping safe in these trying times. Since March 2020, humanity has been braving a challenge
that could not have been fathomed by most, even in their imagination. The global and Indian economies have passed through
prolonged and repetitive lockdowns, brought about by fresh bouts of the COVID-19 contagion, some of which have proven the
word unprecedented in every way.

In this current business environment, our company has delivered exceptional results. While we have onboarded new clients, the
existing clients have been expanding their business with us. Our Airan Family is attributed towards the successful consistence of
growth regardless the hurdles. Each year this family gets bigger and bigger, and we have prioritised the health and wellness of this
family so thatitnever stops growing.

The sharp shiftin client preferences has accelerated our digital transformation initiatives and we are now determined to expand our
global service offerings. While staying true to our values, and helping our employees, clients and our community, we will use the
power of technology to realise the potential of our company.

I thank all our stakeholders for their continued support during these testing times. We remain committed to turn these massive
challenges into meaningful change and are hopeful of capitalising on opportunities while adapting rapidly.

\’

Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal
Executive Director
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Covid-19 Preventative Measures
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Walkathon-2021
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Rewards & Recognltlon (Government Banking Support Team)

=Dy ww & EAEE AW

AIR.AN LIMITED

Annual Report 2020-21 Page | 17 of 156



Rewards & Recognltlon (Doorstep Banking Support Team)
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Rewards & Recognition (Doorstep Banking Support Team)
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With Hon’ble Home Minister of Gujarat State, Shri Pradipsinh Jadeja

ETE

Acquisition of Quadpro E Services Pvt. Ltd.
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Rewards & Recognition (Incharge Team)

Al " AN =y —SEAN

i)

- AR AT =
oy D o ATHAT AR/ = g
ARAN o B i:"" GABE g i AIRAN &
R o AIRAN ATRAN \‘ 2 AL

AIRAN &

Annual Report 2020-21 Page | 23 of 156



Rewards & Recogmtlon (Group CFO and CS)
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Rewards & Recognition (Core Team)
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Merger of Sri Sairam Enterprises (SSRE)
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E-mail : contact@airanlimited.com

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
Kfin Technologies Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No.31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramaguda,
Hyderabad-500 032, Telangana, India.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

CA Siddharth Sampatji Dugar Chairman
CA Ajit Gyanchand Jain Member
Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta Member
Mr. Manish Chidambaram Iyer Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta Chairperson
Mrs. Sarita Neeraj Aggarwal Member
CA Ajit Gyanchand Jain Member
CA Siddharth Sampatji Dugar Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Mrs. Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Chairman
Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta Member
Mrs. Sarita Neeraj Aggarwal Member

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

CA Ajit Gyanchand Jain Chairman
Mrs. Sarita Neeraj Aggarwal Member
Mrs. Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Member
Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta Member

S

Annual Report 2020-21

Page | 27 of 156



Spectrum of Services

Cash Management Services (CMS) Back Office Management

Door Step Banking Services Bookkeeping Services
Fee Collection / Counter Management Software Development Services
Customer Onboarding eKYC via Aadhaar Self-Managed Superannuation Fund

\ Cheque Truncation / Processing Services . ’ Financials and Taxation w

\ E-stamping / Registration Fee Collection . ’ Data Migration ¢

N Document Management Services . ’ Payroll Processing Services V

\ Contact Center Services . ’ Property & Strata Management Services ¢

N Records Management . ’ Digital Document Verification ¢
Address Verification & Credit Verification Automobile Inspection
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AIRAN

Report of
Board of Directors

To

The Members(s) of

Airan Limited

The Board of Directors hereby presents the company’s 26th Annual Report of the business and operations of your Company

(“the Company” or “Airan”), along with the Consolidated and Standalone audited financial statements, for the financial
year ended March 31,2021.

FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS:
The Company’s Financial performance (Standalone & Consolidated) for the year ended on March 31, 2021 is summarized
below:
(R in lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 B\YEVYd (8ci BA1pA | March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations 6,286.30 5,666.64 6,629.74 5,767 .95
Other Income 182.08 149.07 225.67 191.42
Total Income 6,468.38 5,815.71 6,855.41 5,959.37
Operating expenditure before Finance cost, 5286.16 4,583.37 5585.56 4,670.77
depreciation and amortization
Earnings before Finance cost, 1182.23 1,232.34 1269.84 1,288.61
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
Less: Finance costs 46.52 70.78 71.85 71.11
Depreciation and amortization expense 417.42 401.15 433.41 413.76
Profit before tax 718.29 760.42 764.58 803.73
Less: Tax expense 161.29 121.10 176.01 131.32
Profit for the year (PAT) 557.00 639.32 588.57 672.41
YEAR AT A GLANCE

Financial Performance on Standalone Basis:

The total income of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 was Rs. 6468.38 Lakh as against the total income of
Rs.5815.72 Lakh for the previous year ended March 31, 2020.

The Company has earned a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 548.47 Lakh for the year under review as compared to Net Profit of
Rs.639.32 Lakh in the previous year.
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Financial Performance on Consolidate Basis:

The total income of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 was Rs. 6855.41 Lakh as against the total income of
Rs.5959.37 Lakh for the previous year ended March 31, 2020.

The Company has earned a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 577.78 Lakh for the year under review as compared to Net Profit of
Rs.672.41 Lakh in the previous year.

Dividend

With a view to conserve the resources of company for future growth, the Board of Directors do not recommend any Dividend
for the Financial Year 2020-21 (Previous Year Nil).

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, there is no amount of Dividend remaining unclaimed / unpaid
fora period of 7 (seven) years and / or unclaimed Equity Shares which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF).

Amount transferred to reserve

During the year, the Company has not apportioned any amount to other reserve. The profit earned during the year has been
carried to the balance sheet of the Company.

Change in Nature of Business

During the year, your Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line of business as per
main object of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL:

Authorized Capital

The present Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,600.00 Lakh divided into 130000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2.00 each.
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital

The present Issue, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,500.40 Lakh divided into 125020000 Equity Shares of
Rs.2.00 each.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Constitution of Board

The Constitution of the Board of Directors and other disclosure related to the Board of Directors are given in the Report on
Corporate Governance.

During the year Mr. Abhishek Sandeepkumar Agrawal was regularised in the previous Annual General Meeting w.e f.
November 14,2019 for a period of five(5) years.

Board Meeting

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company.
Additional Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies
and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at registered office of the Company or through audio visual
means.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times, viz 20th June, 2020, 30th June, 2020, 14th
August, 2020, 12th November, 2020, 13th February, 2021, and 9"March, 2021.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting are given in the Report on
Corporate Governance.

Independent Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has five
Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all five Independent Directors
of the Company meet all the criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and
Listing Regulations and they are Independent of Management./ A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on
9th March, 2021 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of
Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.
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The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on
the website of the Company at https:/ /airanlimited.com /docs / TAndCOfID%20(1).pdf

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies
Act, 2013 and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 2020-2021. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said
declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of
the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for re-appointment as Independent Directors and are
independent of the Management.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.
Information on Directorate

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Poonam
Sandeepkumar Agrawal (DIN: 01712128), Executive Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing annual
general meeting. She, being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment as such and seeks re-appointment. The Board of
Directors recommends her re-appointment on the Board.

The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI, of the person seeking re-
appointment as Director and revision in Remuneration is annexed to the Notice convening the twenty fifth annual general
meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has Mr. Sandeepkumar Agrawal who is acting as
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Krunal Ashokkumar Jethva who is acting as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and Mrs. Stuti Kinariwala who is acting as a Company Secretary.

As on the date of this report, the Company has Mr. Sandeepkumar Agrawal who is acting as Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, Mr. Krunal Ashokkumar Jethva who is acting as Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Ms.
Stuti Kinariwala as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company.

Performance Evaluation

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation of the Board is
undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with the aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board
and the Committees. During the year under review, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance,
performance of the Directors, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The exercise was led by the
Chairman of the NRC along with the Chairman of Board. The NRC has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time
schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The criteria for Evaluation of
Board, Individual Directors and Committees include, inter alia, the following:

Board Evaluation Evaluation of Individual Directors Committee Evaluation

* Board Structure - qualifications, < Professional qualifications and ¢ Mandateandcomposition

experience and competencies
Board Diversity

Meetings - regularity, frequency,
agenda, discussion and recording of
minutes

Functions - strategy, governance,
compliances, evaluation of risks,
stakeholder value and responsibility,
conflict of interest

Independence of management from
the Board, access of Board and
management to each other

experience
Knowledge, skills and competencies

Fulfillment of functions, ability to
function as a team

Attendance

Commitment, contribution, integrity
and independence

In addition to the above, the Chairman
of the Board Meetings is also
evaluated on key aspects of his role,
including effectiveness of leadership
and ability to steer Meetings,
impartiality and ability to keep
shareholders’ interests in mind

Effectiveness of the Committee
Structure of the Committee

Meetings - regularity, frequency,
agenda, discussion and dissent,
recording of minutes

Independence of the Committee from
the Board and contribution to
decisions of the Board
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b)  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year;

c)  The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) TheDirectors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31,2021 on going concern basis.

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal
Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details of which are given
hereunder.

1.  AuditCommittee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3.  Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

4.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective role and responsibility are detailed in the Report on
Corporate Governance annexed to this Report.

Audit Committee

The Company has formed Audit Committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

As at March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Siddharth Dugar (Non-Executive Independent) as Chairperson
and Mr. Ajit Jain (Non-Executive Independent) and Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta (Non-Executive Independent), Mr. Manish Iyer
(Non-Executive Independent), as Members.

Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board of Directors.
Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic policy. The said mechanism also provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such mechanism
hasbeen disclosed in the Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism is available on the website of the Company at
https:/ /airanlimited.com/docs/whistle-blower-policy%20(1).pdf

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. It enables the
Company to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize the aspirations of human
resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Executive
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
within the salary scale approved by the members and are effective from April 1, of each year.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the Company at
https:/ /airanlimited.com/docs/Nomination%20and %20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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Remuneration of Directors

The details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the financial year 2020-21 to Executive Directors/Directors of the
Company is provided in Form MGT-9 and Report on Corporate Governance which are the part of this report.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report as Annexure—A.

The Company approved Disinvestment / Sale of 20,000 Equity Shares of Airan BPO Private Limited
(U74910GJ2012PTC072662) - 100% equity investment held by company in its Wholly-owned Subsidiary Company on June
30, 2020. The sale value of the investments held in AIRAN BPO PRIVATE LIMITED was determined based upon the
independent valuation report.

Our Company has acquired 70.45% of shares in Quadpro ITES Limited (Earstwhile known as Quadpro E Services Private
Limited) by making it a subsidiary company on March 10,2021.

The statement also provides details of performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries. Audited financial
statements together with related information and other reports of each of the subsidiary companies have also been placed on
the website of the Company at www.airanlimited.in.

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 129(3) of
Companies Act, 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards have been prepared which forms part of the Annual Report.

Further, the Company does not have any Associate Companies and Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2021.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. There were no deposits, which were claimed and remained unpaid by the
Company as on March 31, 2021.

PARTICULARS OFLOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
givenin the notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

ANNUALRETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
https:/ /airanlimited.com/docs/MGT-7 pdf

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is
obtained for Related Party Transactions on a quarterly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature and/or entered in
the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length. All Related Party Transactions are subjected to independent review
by a reputed accounting firm to establish compliance with the requirements of Related Party Transactions under the
Companies Act, 2013, and Listing Regulations. There was no contracts, arrangements or transactions which was executed not
in ordinary course of business and/or at arm’s length basis.Further, there were no related party transactions with the
Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests
of the Company.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and at Arm’s Length basis.
No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last
audited financial statement, were entered during the year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party
Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 isnotapplicable.

Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions entered as per Indian Accounting
Standard —24. The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy
to regulate transactions between the Company and its Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, the Rules thereunder and the SEBI LODR Regulations.

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, your Company has formulated a Policy
on Related Party Transactions. The Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the
Board is uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at the Web-link: https://airanlimited.in/docs/RTP.pdf.
The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between
the Company and Related Parties.
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INTERNALFINANCIAL CONTROL (IFC) SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are made to minimize the
impact of such risks on the operations of the Company. Necessary internal control systems are also put in place by the
Company on various activities across the board to ensure that business operations are directed towards attaining the stated
organizational objectives with optimum utilization of the resources. Apart from these internal control procedures, a well-
defined and established system of internal audit is in operation to independently review and strengthen these control
measures, which is carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants. The audit is based on an internal audit plan,
which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditor of the Company and the audit committee. The conduct
of internal auditis oriented towards the review of internal controls and risks in its operations.

M/s. Deora Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 123009W), the statutory auditors of the
Company has audited the financial statements included in this annual report and has issued an report annexed as an
Annexure B to the Audit Report of the Company on our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in section 143 of
Companies Act, 2013).

The audit committee reviews reports submitted by the management and audit reports submitted by internal auditors and
statutory auditor. Suggestions for improvement are considered and the audit committee follows up on corrective action. The
audit committee also meets the statutory auditors of the Company to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adequacy of
internal control systems and keeps the board of directors informed of its major- observations periodically. Based on its
evaluation (as defined in section 177 of Companies Act 2013), our audit committee has concluded that, as of 31- March, 2021,
ourinternal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

The Company approved Disinvestment / Sale of 20,000 Equity Shares of Airan BPO Private Limited
(U74910GJ2012PTC072662) - 100% equity investment held by company in its Wholly-owned Subsidiary Company on June
30, 2020. The sale value of the investments held in AIRAN BPO PRIVATE LIMITED was determined based upon the
independent valuation report.

Our Company has acquired 70.45% of shares in Quadpro ITES Limited (Earstwhile known as Quadpro E Services Private
Limited) by making it a subsidiary company on March 10, 2021.

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median of employees” remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure—B.

The statement containing top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees as required
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are
being sent to members excluding this annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure will be for inspection.
Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to Company Secretary.

SEXUALHARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual
Harassment Initiative (ASHI) framework, through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the all workplaces
of the Company. Our policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral
approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate. The
Company has setup an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for redressal of Complaints.

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has received Nil complaints on sexual harassment, out of which Nil
complaints have been disposed off and Nil complaints remained pending as of March 31, 2021.

RISKMANAGEMENT

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under review, the
Management reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted by the Company covering the business
operations of the Company.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
A. Conservation of energy —

i.)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Company ensures that the operations are conducted in the
manner whereby optimum utilisation and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved.

ii.) Thestepstaken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: No alternate source has been adopted.

iii.) The capital investmenton energy conservation equipment: No specific investment has been made in reduction in
energy consumption.
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B. Technology absorption—
i.) Theeffort made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable.

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
Not Applicable

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year) -

a. Thedetails of technology imported: Nil.
b. Theyearofimport: Not Applicable.
c.  Whetherthe technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable.
d. Ifnotfully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable.
iv) Theexpenditureincurred on Research and Development: Nil
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure:
i.)  Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil
ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure: Nil
Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(“the CSR Committee”) with object to recommend the Board a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and amount to be
spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility. As at March 31, 2021, the CSR Committee comprised Mrs. Poonam Agrawal
(Executive Director) as Chairperson and Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta (Non-Executive Independent Director) and Sarita Aggarwal
(Non-Executive Director) as Members of the Committee.

The CSR Committee is responsible for indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on CSR activities.

During the year under review, CSR Committee met 2 (Two) times on June 20,2020 and February 13,2021 in which all members
of the Committee were present. The meetings were held to review and approve the expenditure incurred by the Company
towards CSR activities.

During the Financial Year 2020-21, Main focus of the Company with respect to CSR Contribution was Covid Relief Work, to
provide the grocery item, i.e. Oil Tins for the benefit of needy and poor people. Futher, the Company gave CSR fund to Airan
Foundation whichis associated with the social activities.

The CSR Policy may be accessed at the web link https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/CSR_FINAL.pdf . The Annual Report on CSR
activities in prescribed formatis annexed as an Annexure —C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. As stipulated in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate
of the Practicing Company Secretary with regards to compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to
the Board’s Reportas Annexure—-D.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual
Report.

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT

M/s. Deora Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 123009W) were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of your Company at the twenty Second Annual General Meeting for a term of five consecutive years, subject to
ratification of appointment at every subsequent annual general meeting to be held after twenty Second Annual General
Meeting.

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on May 7, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting and hence resolution for
ratification of appointment of statutory auditor is not proposed by the Board of Directors.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.
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Disclosure of total fees paid to Statutory Auditor, on a consolidated basis

Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to statutory auditors of the
Company and other firms in the network entity of which the statutory auditors are a part, during the year ended March 31,
2021,is Rs.4.73 lakhs.

REPORTING OFFRAUD

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD

Since the company is not falling under prescribed class of Companies, our Company is not required to maintain cost record.
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) -IFRS CONVERGED STANDARDS

Your Company had adopted Ind AS with effect from April 1, 2017 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification
dated February 16, 2015 notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. Your Company has provided
Ind AS Financials for the year ended March 31, 2020 along with comparable as on March 31, 2019 and Opening Statement of
Assets and Liabilities as on 1 April, 2018.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THIEIR REPORT

The Company has appointed SCS & Co.LLP, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company
for the financial year 2020-21, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 is annexed to thisreport as an Annexure—E.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and ‘General
Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 134 (3) of the Act
and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the act and listing regulations, to the
extent the transactions took place on those items during the year. Your Directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review or they
arenotapplicable to the Company;

(i) Detailsrelating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act;

(ii) Issueof Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

(iii) Issue ofshares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and ESOS;
(iv) Thereisnorevisionin the Board Report or Financial Statement;

(v) Nosignificant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern
status and Company’s operations in future;

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made by the employees at all
levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment during the year under review.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your Company has been receiving from its
suppliers, distributors, retailers, business partners and others associated with it as its trading partners. Your Company looks
upon them as partners in its progress and has shared with them the rewards of growth. It will be your Company’s endeavour
to build and nurture strong links with the trade based on mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation with each other,
consistent with consumer interests.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, Government and Regulatory
Authorities and Stock Exchanges, for their continued support.

Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : August 28, 2021 Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Executive Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 01712128 DIN 02566480
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Annexure — A

Sl. No. |1

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary Airan BPO | Cqub
Pvt. Ltd.

Infosystems
Pvt. Ltd.

Airan Global | Airan
Pvt. Ltd.

Australia
Pty. Ltd.

Singapore
Pvt. Ltd.

¢»>AIRAN

Airan UK Quadpro
Ltd. ITeS Ltd.

The date since when subsidiary 03-01-2019 29-03-2018 24-04-2017 26-02-2019 05-07-2017 07-05-2019 10-03-2021
was acquired

Reporting period for the 01-04-2020 to  01-04-2020 to  01-04-2020 to ~ 01-04-2020 to ~ 01-04-2020 to  01-04-2020 to  01-04-2020 to
subsidiary concerned, 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2021
if different from the holding

company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Exchange rate as on the last Exchange Rate Exchange Rate Exchange Rate

date of the relevant 1AUD=5561 1SGD=>5443 1GBP=10091

Financial year in the case of INR INR INR

foreign subsidiaries.

Share capital 2,00,000.00 1,00,000.00  2,20,00,000.00 5,561.00 5,44,300.00 10,091.00  20,632,500.00
Reserves and surplus 13,232,729.00 (69,801.00) 171,594.00 865,977.00 (10,091.00)  7,925,430.00
Total assets 50,379,040.00  24,503,341.00 2,230,966.00 1,688,414.00 44,199.00  54,961,695.00
Total Liabilities 50,379,040.00  24,503,341.00 2,230,966.00 1,688,414.00 44,199.00  54,961,695.00
Investments - 2,565,000.00 - - - - -
Turnover 1,690,860.00  6,574,470.00 7,294,744.00  4,123,880.00 - 103,490,068.00
Profit before taxation 1,439,864.00 857,565.00 276,816.00 (9,571.00)  10,261,484.00
Provision for taxation (319,821.00) (428,726.00) - (17,607.00) - 2,989,692.00
Profit after taxation 1,120,042.00 428,839.00 259,210.00 (9,571.00)  7,271,792.00
Proposed Dividend = = = o - - -
Extent of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 70.45%

(in percentage)
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Annexure - B
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under.

A. Informationas per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year and the
Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. | Name Designation Nature of eI Al Percentage
No. Payment Median Increase
Employee’s
Remuneration
1. Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal ~ Chairman & Remuneration 6.79:1 33.81%
Managing Director
2. Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Executive Director Remuneration 6.79:1 33.81%
3. Abhishek Sandeepkumar Agrawal Executive Director Remuneration ~ 3.56:1 Not Applicable
4. Sarita Neeraj Aggarwal Non-Executive Director ~ Sitting Fees 0.06:1 Not Applicable
5. Ajit Gyanchand Jain Non-Executive Director ~ Sitting Fees 0.08:1 Not Applicable
6. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta Non-Executive Sitting Fees 0.08:1 Not Applicable
Independent Director
7. Jayesh Kanhaiyalal Jain Non-Executive Sitting Fees 0.03:1 Not Applicable
Independent Director
8.  Siddharth Sampatji Dugar Non-Executive Sitting Fees 0.06:1 Not Applicable
Independent Director
9. Manish Chidambaram Iyer Non-Executive Sitting Fees 0.05:1 Not Applicable
Independent Director
10.  Stuti Kinariwala Company Secretary Remuneration 0.68:1 Not Applicable
11.  Krunal Jethva Chief Financial Officer =~ Remuneration 1.58:1 3.09%

b) The percentageincrease in the median remuneration of employeesin the financial year:

The median remuneration of the employees in current financial year was increase by 7.30% over the previous
financial year.

¢) Thenumberof permanentemployees on the rolls of the Company: 1405 Employees as on March 31,2021.

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration:

The Average 5.05% increase was made in salary of employees whereas remuneration of Executive Directors was
increased by 33.81%. Further, there were no exceptional circumstances in which the salary executive Directors was
increased. It was as per the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : August 28, 2021 Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Executive Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 01712128 DIN 02566480
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Annexure — C
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in the best interest of all
stakeholders. It is not a mere compliance of laws, rules and regulations but a commitment to values, best management
practices and adherence to the highest ethical principles in all its dealings to achieve the objects of the Company, enhance
stakeholder value and discharge its social responsibility.

The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices and it believes that good Corporate
Governance is essential for achieving long-term corporate goals and to enhance stakeholders’ value. In this pursuit, the
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is based on the belief that effective Corporate Governance practices
constitute a strong foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built to last. Good Corporate Governance is
indispensable to resilient and vibrant capital markets and is, therefore, an important instrument of investor protection. As a
good corporate citizen, the Company lays great emphasis on a corporate culture of conscience, integrity, fairness,
transparency, accountability and responsibility for efficient and ethical conduct of its business. In addition, the Company has
adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors including Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which
suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) .The same is
available on the website of the Company at www.airanlimited.com.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The “Board”, being the trustee of the Company, responsible for the establishment of cultural, ethical and accountable growth
of the Company, is constituted with a high level of integrated, knowledgeable and committed professionals. The Board
provides strategic guidance and independent views to the Company’s senior management while discharging its fiduciary
responsibilities.

Constitution of Board

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including
independent Directors, which plays a crucial role in Board processes and provides independent judgment on issues of
strategy and performance. As on 31st March, 2021, board comprises of 9 (Nine) Directors out of which 3 (Three) Directors are
Executive Directors, 1 (One) Director is Non-Executive Director and remaining 5 (Five) are Non-Executive Independent
Directors.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as
amended from time to time. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act,
2013. All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The present strength of
the Board reflects judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which enables the Board to provide
effective leadership to the Company.

The number of Directorship(s), Committee Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within respective limits
prescribed under the Actand Listing Regulations asamended from time to time.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
Asat31st March, 2021, the Board comprised following Directors;
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Name of Category Cum Date of Total Directorship| No. of Committee” |No. of Inter-se
Director Designation Appointment | Directorship | in other Y T Lees Relation
at current in other Listed Director is | Director is | N€ld as on | between
Term Companies | Companies |yt bore | Chairman | March 31, | Directors
excluding 2021
our
Company
Mr. Sandeepkumar Promoter January 5, 6 - - - 16137538  Spouce of
Agrawal Chairman and 2017 Equity Mrs. Poonam
appointed as a Managing Director Shares Agrawal,
Managing Director Father of
of the Company Mr. Abhishek
for a period of Agrawal and
5 years Brother - in - law
of Mrs. Sarita
Aggarwal
Mrs. Poonam Promoter January 5, 4 - 1 - 12759500  Spouse of Mr.
Agrawal Executive Director 2017 Equity Sandeepkumar
Shares Agrawal Mother
of Mr. Abhishek
Agrawal and
Sister of Mrs.
Sarita Aggarwal
Mr. Abhishek Promoter November 14, 2 - - - 5674975 Son of Mrs.
Agrawal Executive Director 2019 Equity Poonam Agrawal
Shares & Mr. Sandeep
kumar Agrawal
& Nephew of
Mrs. Sarita
Aggarwal
Mrs. Sarita Non-Executive January 6, - = 1 = - Sister of Mrs.
Aggarwal Director 2017 Poonam Agrawal
Aunt of Mr.
Abhishek Agrawal
& Sisiter-in-law
of Sandeepkumar
Agrawal
Mr. Ajit Jain Non-Executive December 7, - - 2 1 - No Relation
Independent 2019
Director
Mrs. Bhoomika Non-Executive January 6 1 - 2 - 25000 No Relation
Gupta Independent 2017 Equity
Director Shares
Mr. Siddharth Non-Executive January 19, 4 - 1 1 - No Relation
Dugar Independent 2017
Director
Mr. Jayesh Jain Non-Executive February 15, 1 - - - - No Relation
Independent 2018
Director
Mr. Manish Iyer Non-Executive August 30, 1 - 1 - - No Relation
Independent 2018
Director

A Committee includes Audit Committee and Shareholders” Grievances Committee across all Public Companies including

our Company.

~excluding Section 8 Company, Struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013. A Certificate from M/s SCS & Co. LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad as stipulated
under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations, is attached as an Annexure — C1 to this Report.

Board Meeting

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company:.
Additional Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies

and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at registered office of the Company.
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During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times, viz 20" June, 2020, 30" June, 2020, 14"
August, 2020, 12" November, 2020, 13" February, 2021 and 9" March, 2021.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below;

Sr. | Name of Director No. of No. of No. of Presence
No. Board Board Board at the
Meeting Meeting Meeting previous
held eligible attended AGM
to attend
1 Sandeepkumar Agrawal 6 6 6 Yes
2 Poonam Agrawal 6 6 6 Yes
3  Abhishek Agrawal 6 6 6 Yes
4 GSarita Aggarwal 6 6 6 Yes
5 Ajit]Jain 6 6 6 Yes
6 Bhoomika Gupta 6 6 6 Yes
7 Siddharth Dugar 6 6 6 Yes
8 Jayesh]Jain 6 6 6 Yes
9 Manishlyer 6 6 6 Yes

During the year, the Board of Directors accepted all recommendations of the Committees of the Board, which were statutory
innature and required to be recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. Hence, the Company is
in compliance of condition of clause 10(j) of schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Independent Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has five
Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all five Independent Directors
of the Company meet all the criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and
Listing Regulations and they are Independent of Management.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 9th March, 2021 to review the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on
the website of the Company at https:/ /airanlimited.in/Investors.aspx.

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies
Act, 2013 and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 2020-2021. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said
declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of
the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for re-appointment as Independent Directors and are
independent of the Management.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.
Code of conduct for the Board of Directors and senior management personnel:

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
of the Company. The compliance of the said code has been affirmed by them annually. The Code of Conduct also includes the
duties of Independent Directors. A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company’s website and same may be accessed at
https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/CodeOfConduct.pdf.

Adeclaration signed by the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is attached with this report.
Familiarization Programmes for Board Members

The Company has formulated a policy to familiarise the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company;, etc.,
through various programmes. The details of such familiarization programmes are disclosed on the website of the Company
and the web link for the same is https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs /FamiliarisationProgram.pdf.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES:

Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors are paid sitting fees in accordance with the applicable Laws.
Company is paying sitting fees of Rs. 2000/- for attending a Board Meeting and for attending Audit Committee Meeting,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting and Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meeting each. During the
financial year 2020-21, the Company has paid sitting fees to Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors for attending
Board Meetings and committee meetings.

Skills/expertise/ competencies of Board of Directors:

The Board of the Company comprises eminent personalities and leaders in their respective fields. These members bring in the
required skills, competence and expertise to the Board. These Directors are nominated based on well-defined selection
criteria. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) considers, inter alia, key skills, qualifications, expertise and
competencies, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for appointment of Director. The Board of Directors have,
based on the recommendations of the NRC, identified the following core key skills/expertise/competencies of Directors as
required in the context of business of the Company for its effective functioning which are currently possessed by the Board
Members of the Company and mapped against each of the Directors:

Safety and Corporate General Management and
Social Responsibility Leadership Experience

RGP W11

Human Resource and . Corporate Strategy and
Communication Skills and Strategic Planning

[ ) . [ )
Expertise
HAHEB p BEEOHDB

( ] [
BEEOHEO BEEOGHBO

Finance, Risk Management, Science and Technology
Regulatory and Governance including IT

Mr. Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal n CA Jayesh Kanhaiyalal Jain
Mrs. Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal CA Siddharth Sampatji Dugar
Mr. Abhishek Sandeepkumar Agrawal n CA Ajit Gyanchand Jain

Mrs. Sarita Neeraj Aggarwal n Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta

-l g

CA Manish Chidambaram Iyer

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has devised a Code of Conduct of Insider Trading Regulations which is applicable to all the
Designated Persons of the Company who are expected to have access to the unpublished Price Sensitive information
relating to the Company and is available on the website of the Company https://airanlimited.com/docs/
InternalProceduresOfInsiderTrading.pdf

The said Code lays down guidelines which advise them.
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has Four
(4) committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the
Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of
Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the
financial year and the related attendance, are provided in detailed hereunder.

There were no instances during the financial year 2020-21, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by
any committee of the Board.

A. Audit Committee

The Company has formed audit committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities of
monitoring financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal
financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit activities.

During the year, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given under Regulation 18 read
with Part C of Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013. The terms reference of Audit
Committee are as under:

Brief Description of Terms & Reference:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required being included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Changes, if any, inaccounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
¢)  Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d) Significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
f)  Disclosure of any related party transactions.
g) Qualifications in the draftauditreport.
5.  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whereveritis necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit;
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14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be
prescribed;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function
or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Reviewing the Management letters/ letters of Internal Control weaknesses issued by Statutory Auditor;
21. Carryingoutany other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

22. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans /
advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of the provision and

23. The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit,
including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and
may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company.

Review of Information by the Committee:

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statementof significantrelated party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;
3. Managementletters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal auditreports relating to internal control weaknesses;
5

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit
Committee and

6. statementof deviations:

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
in terms of Regulation 32(7).

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8.  Examination of the financial statement and auditors’ report thereon;

9.  Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment;

11.  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

12.  Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

13.  Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

14. Any other matters as prescribed by law from time to time.

Powers of Committee:

The Committee-

1.  May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including observations of auditors and
review of financial statement before their submission to board;

2. May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the Company;

3. Toinvestigateinto any matter in relation to above items or referred toitby Board;
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4. Toobtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained in the records
of the Company;

5. Toseekinformation from any employee;

6. Tosecureattendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;
7. Any other power asmay be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law.
Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings:

Audit Committee meeting is generally held one in quarter for the purpose of recommending the quarterly / half yearly /
yearly financial result and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. Additional meeting is
held for the purpose of reviewing the specific item included in terms of reference of the Committee. During the year under
review, Audit Committee met 6 (Six) times on 20" June, 2020, 30" June, 2020, 14" August, 2020, 12" November, 2020, 13"
February, 2021 and 9" March, 2021.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Members Category Designation Number of meetings during the
in financial year 2020-21
Committee .
Held Eligible to Attended
attend
Mr. Siddharth Dugar Independent Director Chairperson 6 6 6
Mr. Manish Iyer Independent Director Member 6 6 6
Mr. Ajit Jain Independent Director Member 6 6 6
Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta Independent Director Member 6 6 6

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee. The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in
line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever requires.
Chief Financial Officer of the Company is a regular invitee at the Meeting.

Mr. Siddharth Dugar, the Chairman of the Committee had attended last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 26,2020.

Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of wherever/whenever given.
A. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations. The terms reference of Nomination and Remuneration
committee are briefed hereunder;

Terms of reference:

1.  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
3.  Devisingapolicy on diversity of board of directors;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

6. Recommend to theboard, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Explanation: Senior Management means personnel who are members of the core management team excluding BOD
comprising all members of management one level below the executive directors, including functional heads.

7. Recommend to theboard, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
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8. Other terms of reference as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014.

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is generally held at least once in a year. Additional meetings are held for
the purpose of recommending appointment/re-appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their
remuneration. During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3(Three) times viz, 14" August,
2020, 13" August, 2020 and 9" March, 2021.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Members Category Designation Number of meetings during the
in financial year 2020-21
Committee .
Held Eligible to Attended
attend
Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta Independent Director Chairperson 3 3 3
Mrs. Sarita Aggarwal Non-Executive Director Member 3 3 3
Mr. Siddharth Dugar Independent Director Member 3 3 3
Mr. Ajit Jain Independent Director Member 3 3 3

Board and Director Evaluation and criteria for evaluation

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation of the Board is
undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with the aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board
and the Committees. During the year under review, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance,
performance of the Directors, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The exercise was led by the
Chairman of the NRC along with the Chairman of Board.The NRC has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time
schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The criteria for Evaluation of
Board, Individual Directors and Committees include, inter alia, the following:

Committee Evaluation

Board Evaluation Evaluation of Individual Directors

e Board Structure - qualifications, -«

experience and competencies
Board Diversity

Meetings - regularity, frequency,
agenda, discussion and recording of
minutes

Functions - strategy, governance,
compliances, evaluation of risks,
stakeholder value and responsibility,
conflict of interest

Independence of management from
the Board, access of Board and
management to each other

Professional qualifications and

experience
Knowledge, skills and competencies

Fulfillment of functions, ability to
function as a team

Attendance

Commitment, contribution, integrity
and independence

In addition to the above, the Chairman
of the Board Meetings is also
evaluated on key aspects of his role,
including effectiveness of leadership
and ability to steer Meetings,
impartiality and ability to keep
shareholders’ interests in mind

Mandate and composition
Effectiveness of the Committee
Structure of the Committee

Meetings - regularity, frequency,
agenda, discussion and dissent,
recording of minutes

Independence of the Committee from
the Board and contribution to
decisions of the Board
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Remuneration of Directors:
The Company has not entered into any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non-executive directors are provided under the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the Company which is hosted on the website of the Company viz;
https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/NominationAndRemuCommittee.pdf.

During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration to Executive Directors of the Company, details of which
are asunder;

Component | Remunera

Name of Directors Designation of tion paid Tenure
Payment | (Rs.in Lakh)

1. Sandeepkumar Chairman  Fixed Rs.32.01 5years
Vishwanath and Salary for EY.  Appointed as Managing Director
Agrawal Managing 2020-21  we.e.f. January 5, 2017 and the
Director same was approved by the
Members in their EGM held on
January 6, 2017
2. Poonam Executive Fixed Rs.32.01 5years
Sandeepkumar Director Salary for EY.  Appointed as Executive Director
Agrawal 2020-21 w.e.f. January 5, 2017 and the

same was approved by the
Members in their EGM held on

January 6, 2017
3. Abhishek Executive Fixed Rs.16.78 for 5 years
Sandeepkumar Director Salary EY. Appointed as an Executive Director
Agrawal 2020-21 w.e.f. November 14, 2019

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on the performance of
the Company in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy within the limit approved by the Board or
Members.

Apart from sitting fees, Non-Executive Directors do not receive any other consideration except in their professional capacity.
Further, the Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees within the limits as stipulated under Section 197 of Companies Act,
2013, for attending Board /Committee Meetings. Sitting Fees paid to Directors does not require the approval of Shareholders
and Central Government. Details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are given below:

Sr.No. | Name of Directors | Sitting Fees paid during FY 2020-21  in Lakh)
1. Mrs. Sarita Aggarwal 0.26 Lakh
2. Mr. Ajit Jain 0.35 Lakh
3. Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta 0.35 Lakh
4. Mr. SiddharthDugar 0.28 Lakh
5. Mr. Jayesh Jain 0.12 Lakh
6. Mr. Manish Iyer 0.24 Lakh

The Company has not entered into / paid any service contracts, notice period, severance fees. Further, the Company has not
granted any stock options to its Directors.

C. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee
Terms of Reference:

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee (“SRC”) looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders. The
Committee ensures cordial investor relations, oversees the mechanism for redressal of investors” grievances and
specifically looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders. The Committee specifically looks into redressing
shareholders’/investors’ complaints/ grievances pertaining to share transfers/transmission, non-receipts of annual
reports, non-receipt of declared dividend and other allied complaints. The Committee oversees performance of the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company relating to investor services and recommends measures for
improvement. The terms of reference of the SRC includes:
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(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

(8) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants /annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders
of the company.

Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each Member at Meetings:

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee met 4 (Four) times viz on 20" June, 2020,
14" August, 2020, 12" November, 2020 and 13" February, 2021.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Members Category Designation Number of meetings during the
in financial year 2020-21
Committee .
Held Eligible to Attended
attend
Mr. Ajit Jain Independent Director Chairperson 4 4 4
Mrs. Poonam Agrawal Executive Director Member 4 4 4
Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta Independent Director Member 4 4 4
Mrs. Sarita Aggarwal Non-Executive Director Member 4 4 4

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer

Ms. Stutiben Kinariwala, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company is acting as the Compliance Officer.

Complaint

No. of complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2020 NIL
No. of complaints received from the Investors from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 NIL
No. of complaints solved to the satisfaction of the Investors from April 1, 2020 NIL
No. of complaints pending as on March 31, 2021 NIL

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (“The CSR Committee”) with object to recommend the Board a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility
and amount to be spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility. The CSR Committee is responsible for indicating the
activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and
recommending the amount to be spent on CSR activities.

During the year under review, CSR Committee met 2 (Two) times on 14th August, 2020 and 13th February, 2021. The
meetings were held to review and approve the expenditure incurred by the Company towards CSR activities and annual
report on CSR activities.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Members Category Designation Number of meetings during the
in financial year 2020-21
Committee ”
Held Eligible to Attended
attend
Mrs. Poonam Agrawal Executive Director Chairperson 2
Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta Independent Director Member 2
Mrs. Sarita Aggarwal Non-Executive Director Member 2 2 2
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During the Financial Year 2020-21, Main focus of the Company with respect to CSR Contribution was Covid Relief Work, to
provide the grocery item, i.e. Oil Tins for the benefit of needy and poor people. Futher, the Company gave CSR fund to Airan
Foundation which is associated with the social activities.

The CSR Policy may be accessed at the web link https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/CSR_FINAL.pdf.

GENERALBODY MEETINGS

¢»>AIRAN

The details of last three Annual General Meeting of the Company and Special Resolution(s) passed therein is as under:

Financial | Day, Date and Venue No. of Special Resolution Passed
Year Time
2019-20 Saturday;, Through Two way Video
September 26, Conferencing (‘VC)’
2020
09:00 AM
2018-19 Saturday;, 408, Kirtiman Complex,
August 24, B/h. Rembrandt Building,
2019 C. G. Road, Ahmedabad,
11:00 AM Gujarat - 380 006.
2017-18 Saturday;, 408, Kirtiman Complex,
July 28, B/h. Rembrandt Building,
2018 C. G. Road, Ahmedabad,
04:00 PM Gujarat - 380 006.

Following Special Resolutions were passed by the Members of the Compny in the previous three Annual General Meeting
through E-voting, as per the procedure prescribed under Section 108 & Section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 under the overall supervision of the Scrutinizer, Mr. Anand

Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary.

Details of
Resolution(s)

Resolution

Special Regularization cum appointment
of Mr. Abhishek Sandeepkumar
Agrawal (07613943) as an
Executive Director of the

Company

Resolution(s)
passed on

26-09-20

Total No. of
votes in favour

106369670

Total No. of
votes against

10000

% of votes
in favour

% of votes
against

99.99 0.0094

Revision in Remuneration
payable to Mr. Sandeepkumar
Vishwanath Agrawal

(DIN 02566480),

Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company

Special

26-09-20

106369670

10000

99.99 0.0094

Revision in Remuneration
payable to Mrs. Poonam
Sandeepkumar Agrawal
(DIN 01712128), Executive
Director of the Company.

Special

26-09-20

106369670

10000

99.99 0.0094

Special Alteration of the Object
Clause of the Memorandum of

Association of the Company

26-09-20

106369670

10000

99.99 0.0094

Revision in Remuneration
payable to Mrs. Poonam
Sandeepkumar Agrawal
(DIN 01712128),
Executive Director

of the Company.

Special

24-08-19

94962881

4818

99.9 0

Revision in Remuneration
payable to Mr. Sandeepkumar
Agrawal (DIN 02566480),
Managing Director

of the Company.

Special

24-08-19

94962881

4818

99.9 0
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Special

Revision in Remuneration 28-07-18 5735830
payable to Mr. Sandeepkumar

Vishwanath Agrawal

(DIN 02566480), Chairman and

Managing Director

of the Company

(> AIRAN

100 0

Special

Revision in Remuneration 28-07-18 5735830
payable to Mrs. Poonam

Sandeepkumar Agrawal

(DIN 01712128), Executive

Director of the Company.

100 0 0

Passing of Special Resolution through Postal Ballot

During the year no Special Resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. Financial Results

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in widely circulating national and local dailies such as “The
Indian Express” in English and “The Indian Express” in Gujarati language and are displayed on the website of the
Company https:/ /airanlimited.in/.

&

Website

The Company’s website https:/ /airanlimited.in/ contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors” where
shareholders information is available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website of the
Company https:/ /airanlimited.in/ in a downloadable form.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any presentations to institutional investors or to the analysts.
Further, the result of the Company has notbeen displayed any official news releases.

General Shareholders Information

Date, Time and Venue of 26" Annual General Meeting

Day and Date

Time

Venue

Financial Year

Saturday, September 25,2021
09:00 AM
Through VC/AOVM

408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380 006.

12 months period starting from April 1 and ends on March 31 of subsequent year. This being financial year 2020-21 was
started on April 1,2020 and ended on March 31,2021.

Financial Calendar

(Tentative and subject to change for the financial year 2019-20)

Quarter ending | Release of Results

June 30,2020 On or before August 14,2021
September 30,2020 On or before November 14,2021
December 31,2020 On or before February 14,2021
March 31,2021 On or before May 30,2021
Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31,2021  End of September, 2021

Book closure date

There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will

notbe closed.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
Exchange Plaza Block G, C 1, Bandra Kurla Complex,

G Block BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400051
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Listing fees for the financial year 2020-21 has been paid to National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Stock Code/Symbol

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Symbol - AIRAN)

Market Price Data

¢»>AIRAN

The Monthly high /low and the volume of the Company’s shares traded on stock exchanges and the Monthly high/ low of the

said exchanges are as follows:

Airan Limited (Price in %) Nifty 50 (Price in )

High Price Low Price High Price Low Price
April, 2020 12.75 8.55 9,889.05 8,055.80
May, 2020 13 8.20 9,598.85 8,806.75
June, 2020 19.55 8.20 10,553.15 9,544.35
July, 2020 13.60 11.35 11,341.40 10,299.60
August, 2020 13.50 11.45 11,794.25 10,882.25
September, 2020 12.75 11.05 11,618.10 10,790.20
October, 2020 13 11.05 12,025.45 11,347.05
November, 2020 16.80 10.50 13,145.85 11,557.40
December, 2020 21.15 15.20 14,024.85 12,962.80
January, 2021 19.95 17.40 14,753.55 13,596.75
February, 2021 19.60 17.25 15,431.75 13,661.75
March, 2021 18.75 15.05 15,336.30 14,264.40

The performance of the equity share price of the Company at National Stock Exchange of India Limited is as under:

Airan Share Price at

April, 2020 10.85 9859.90
May, 2020 9.50 9580.30
June, 2020 11.85 10302.10
July, 2020 12.15 11073.45
August, 2020 12.30 11387.50
September, 2020 12.45 11247.55
October, 2020 12 11642.40
November, 2020 16.35 12968.95
December, 2020 18.95 13981.75
January, 2021 18.75 13634.60
February, 2021 18.20 14529.15
March, 2021 15.60 14690.70

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Kfin Technologies Private Limited

Address: Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Andhra Pradesh,

Hyderabad -500 032;

Tel: +91 6716 2222; Email: einward.ris@karvy.com; Web: www.karvy.com

Share Transfer System

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBILODR, as amended, securities can be transferred only in dematerialization form w.e.f. 1st
April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Transfer of shares in electronic
form s effected by the depositories with no involvement of the Company:.
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Distribution of shareholding (As on March 31,2021)

On the basis of number of shares held:

¢»>AIRAN

Shareholders ‘ No. of Shares held
Number | % of Total Number | % of Total
1 -5000 5300 87.89 1619808 1.29
5001 - 10000 284 470 1193249 0.95
10001 - 20000 138 229 1097479 0.88
20001 - 30000 54 0.89 687970 0.55
30001 - 40000 45 0.75 824769 0.66
40001 - 50000 30 0.49 703785 0.56
50001 - 100000 81 1.34 2732895 2.19
100001 - Above 98 1.62 116160045 9291
Total 6030 100.00 125020000 100.00

On the basis of Category of Shareholders:
Sr.

No. Category % of holding
1 Clearing Members 217,829 017
2 HUF 4,611,747 3.69
3 Bodies Corporate 5,789,195 4.63
4 Non Resident Indians 62,131 0.05
5 Non Resident Indians Non Repatriation 23,873 0.02
6 Promoters Individuals 51,708,226 41.36
7 Promoter Body Corporates 42,000,000 33.59
8 ResidentIndividuals 20,606,999 16.48

Total 125,020,000 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity (as on March 31, 2021)

Mode | No. of Shares | Percentage

Demat 125020000 100.00

NSDL 110070336 88.04

CDSL 14949664 11.96

Physical 0 0.00

The shares are traded on National Stock Exchange of India Limited. For those shareholders who hold the shares in physical

form may contact Depository Participant/RTA.

Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging:

The Company does not have material exposure of any commodity and accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are
carried out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI circular no.SEBI / HO / CFD / CMD1 / CIR / P / 2018 /

0000000141 dated November 15,2018.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments till date. Hence, there are no

outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

Plant Locations

The Company, being engaged in service sector business, does not have any plant or factory.
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Address of Correspondence
I)  Airan Limited : Ms. Stutiben Kinariwala, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Address: 408, Kirtiman Complex, B/H. Rembrandt Building, C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380006
E-Mail: shares@airanlimited.in; Phone:+91 79 2646 2233

For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change of address of members and other queries:

Kfin Technologies Private Limited

Address: Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Andhra Pradesh,
Hyderabad -500 032; Tel: +91 6716 2222; Email: einward ris@karvy.com; Web: www.karvy.com

CREDIT RATINGS AND ANY REVISION THERETO:

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year ended March 31, 2020. The Company
hasnot obtained any credit rating during the year.

DISCLOSURE:
Subsidiary Companies

Ason 31st March, 2021, the Company has Six (Six) Subsidiary Companies viz. 1) CQUB Infosystems Private Limited, 2) Airan
Global Private Limited, 3) Airan Australia Pty Limited, 4) Airan UK Limited and 5) Airan Singapore Private Limited, 6)
Quadpro ITES Limited(Previously known as Quadpro E Services Private Limited) out of which none is listed on any stock
exchanges.

The Company has formulated policy for determining ‘material” subsidiaries which has been disclosed on the website of the
Company. The web link of the policy is https:/ /airanlimited.in /docs /MaterialSubsidiaryPolicy.pdf.

Further, the financial statements of said Unlisted Subsidiary Companies were reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Company. The Company has disposed of Shares of Airan BPO Private Limited as on 30" June, 2021. The Minutes of the
Meetings of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Companies have been regularly placed before the Board of the Company.
A statement of all the significant transactions and arrangements, if any, entered into by the unlisted subsidiary companies
were periodically brought to the attention of Board of Directors of the Company.

Material Related Party Transaction

During the year 2020-21, there was one transaction which materially significant related party transactions which does not
have any potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large for which necessary approval of the Members has been
obtained. Further, there was no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large. Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with the related parties set
outin Notes to Accounts - Note No. 33, forming part of the Annual Report.

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The
policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs /RTP.pdf.

Annual Report 2020-21 Statutory Reports Page | 53 of 156



AIRAN LIMITED

Compliances

¢»>AIRAN

There were neither any instances of non-compliance by the Company nor there were any penalties or strictures imposed on
the Company by the Stock Exchange/(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during
the last three years except the following.

Compliance Requirement

Observations/ Remarks

Sr. (Regulations/ circulars / guidelines Deviations of the Practicing
N, including specific clause) Company Secretary

1 Prior intimation under Regulation 29 of ~ Prior Intimation, as required, was not The Company has received a warning
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure ~ given to stock exchange about the letter from Stock Exchange.
Requirements) Regulation 2015. meeting of the board of directors in

which Sub-division of face value of
equity shareis due tobe considered.

2 Schedule B of the Securities And The Trading Window was initially The Trading window was remained
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition Of closed from April 28, 2018 to May 11, openfora period May12,2018toMay 17,
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 2018 vide intimation letter dated April 2018.

27, 2018 for the Board Meeting
scheduled to be held on May 9, 2018 for
consideration of Audited Financial
Result for FY 2017-18.Later on vide letter
dated May 8, 2018, the said Board
meeting was re-scheduled to be held on
May 29, 2018, however, the trading
window was closed from May 18,2018 to
May 31,2018.

3 Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing The facility for remote e-voting was not  The facility for remote e-voting shall be
Obligations and Disclosure closedon5.00p.m.onthedatePreceding closed at5.00 p.m.on the date Preceding
Requirements) Regulation 2015 for the date of the general meeting i.e. at the date of the general meeting as per
providing remote e-voting facility to its ~ 05:00 p.m. on July 27, 2018.1t was closed ~ Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
shareholders, in respect of all earlierthanthespecified timei.e.at05:00 and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
shareholders’ resolutions. p-m.on Tuesday, July 24, 2018. amended from time to time.

4 SEBI Circular No. SEBI / HO / CFD / The Company has not provided the Thecompany wasrequired to provide to
DCR1 / CIR / P / 2018 / 85 dated May information about the directors and all the depositories the information
28, 2018 for System-driven Disclosures employeesto CDSL. about the directors and employees.
in Securities Market

5 Regulation 7(2) of the Securities And The Company has received Disclosure The said Disclosure should be notified to
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition Of =~ on March 26, 2018 for the transactions the Stock Exchange on or before March
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 — executed (Gift) by the Promoters and 28,2018.

Continual Disclosure Promoters Group on March 26, 2018
which was notified to the Stock
Exchange by the Company on April 16,
2018.

6 Regulation 7(2) of the Securities And The Company has received Disclosure The said Disclosure should be notified to
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition Of on April 5, 2018 for the transactions the Stock Exchange on or before April 9,
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 — executed (Gift) by the Promoters and 2018.

Continual Disclosure Promoters Group on April 5, 2018 which
was notified to the Stock Exchange by
the Company on July 6,2018.

7 Regulation 7(2) of the Securities And The Company has received Disclosure The said Disclosure should be notified to
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition Of on June 11, 2018 for the transactions the Stock Exchange on or before July 13,
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 - executed by the Promoters Group on 2018.

Continual Disclosure June 11, 2018 which was notified to the
Stock Exchange by the Company on July
24,2018.
Risk Management

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under review, the
Management reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted by the Company covering the business
operations of the Company.

Proceeds from publicissues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.

During the year under review, the Company has not raised any proceeds from publicissue, right issue, preferential issues, etc.
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CEO/ CFO Certification

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with part B of Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, the Certification by CEO and CFO has
been obtained and the said certification has been placed before the Board Members of the Company for perusal.

Accounting treatment

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Whistle Blower

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic policy. The said mechanism also provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such mechanism
hasbeen disclosed in the Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism is available on the website of the Company at
https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/whistle-blower-policy%20(1).pdf.

Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements as specified under Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR.
The Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed under Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of
Schedule Il of the SEBI LODR. It has obtained a certificate affirming the compliances from Practicing Company Secretary, SCS
and Co. LLP and the same is attached to this Report.

The Board: Since the company does not have a non-executive chairman it does not maintain such office.

Shareholders Rights: The quarterly and half-yearly financial results are published in widely circulated dailies and also
displayed on Company’s website viz. https:/ /airanlimited.in/. Hence, these are not individually sent to the Shareholders.

Modified Opinion(s) in audit report: There isno modified opinion given in the Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements.
Reporting of Internal Auditor: The internal auditor directly reports to audit committee.
Materiality of Events/Information

The Company has also adopted Policy on Determination of Materiality of Events/Information and its disclosures to Stock
Exchange, and Policy on Preservation of Documents which is uploaded on the website of the Company at
https:/ /airanlimited.com/docs/DetermineMaterialityOfEvents.pdf.

a) DematSuspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account:

No outstanding shares were lying in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account and therefore,
dislcousre relaring to same is not applicable.

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company

Total fees of Rs. 4,73,024 /- (Rupees Four Lakh Seventy Three Thousand Twenty Four only) plus GST for financial year 2020-
21, for all services, was paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all
entities in the network firm /network entity of which the statutory auditoris a part.

Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace.
The details relating to the number of complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 2020-21 are prescribed
under Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report.

Secretarial Compliance Report

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing
Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial compliance audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of
all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial Compliance report is in
addition to the Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under Form MR - 3 and is required to be
submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year.

Accordingly, the Company has engaged the services of M/s. SCS & Co. LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries and Secretarial
Auditor of the Company for providing this certification. The said compliance report has been submitted by the Company to
Exchange.

Compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations
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I\SII(:. Particulars R;gulﬂlalfzn Cm:tgﬁlznce
(Yes/No/NA)
1  Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified criteria 16(1)(b) & 25(6) Yes
of ‘independence’ and/or “eligibility”
2 Board composition 17(1), 17(1A) Yes
& 17(1B)
3 Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes
4 Quorum of Board meeting 17(2A) Yes
5  Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
6  Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) NA
7  Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
8  Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes
9  Minimum Information 17(7) Yes
10  Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes
11 Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes
12 Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes
13  Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes
14  Maximum number of directorship 17A Yes
15  Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes
16  Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes
17 Composition of nomination & remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes
18  Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting 19(2A) Yes
19 Meeting of nomination & remuneration committee 19(3A) Yes
20 Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(1), 20(2) Yes
and 20(2A)
21  Meeting of stakeholder relationship committee 20(3A) Yes
22 Composition and role of risk management committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) NA
23 Meeting of Risk Management Committee 21(3A) NA
24 Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes
25  Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(1A),(5), Yes
(6),7) & (8)
26  Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all related party transactions 23(2), (3) Yes
27  Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) NA
28  Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis 23(9) Yes
29  Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) NA
30  Other Corporate Governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity ~ 24(2),(3),(4), Yes
(5) & (6)
31  Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24(A) Yes
32  Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) NA
33  Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes
34  Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes
35 Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes
36  Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yes
37 D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) NA
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38  Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes

39  Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of 26(3) Yes
Board of Directors and Senior management personnel

40  Disclosure of Shareholding by Non- Executive Directors 26(4) Yes

41  Policy with respect to Obligations of directors and senior management 26(2) & 26(5) Yes

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors

A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company M/s. SCS & Co. LLP Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad
confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause E of Schedule V of the
SEBILODR Regulationsisis attached as an Annexure - C2 to this Report.

Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02566480

DECLARATION

I, Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal, Chairman & Managing Director of Airan Limited hereby declare that as of March 31,
2020, all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and
Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel laid down by the Company.

Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : August 28, 2021 Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 02566480
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Annexure - C1
ANNEXURE TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CERTIFICATE OF NON -DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members of

AIRAN LIMITED

408 Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt,
C.G Road Ahmedabad — 380006.

We have examined the following documents:
i)  Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’);

ii) Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as ‘relevant
documents’) as submitted by the Directors of AIRAN Limited (CIN: L74140G]1995PLC025519) having registered office
at408 Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt,C.G Road Ahmedabad —380006 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) to
the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) for the financial years 2020-21 and 2021-22 and relevant registers,
records, forms and returns maintained by the Company and as made available to us for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. It is the responsibility of
Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca. gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company and the respective Directors, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as
stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Director of Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any
such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Dilje.c tor Da.te of Date of
No. | Name of Directors Identification ~ Appointment Cessation
Number in the Company*

1. Mr. Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal 02566480 April 19, 1995 NA
2. Mrs. Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal 01712128 August 8, 2003 NA
3. Mr. Abhishek Sandeepkumar Agrawal 07613943 November 14, 2019 NA
4. Mrs. SaritaNeeraj Aggarwal 07694108 January 6, 2017 NA
5. Mr. Manish Chidambaram Iyer 00631972 August 30, 2018 NA
6.  Mrs. Bhoomika Aditya Gupta 02630074 January 6, 2017 NA
7. Mr. Jayesh Jain 02733035 February 15, 2018 NA
8. Mr. Siddharth Sampatji Dugar 07703369 January 19, 2017 NA
9.  Mr. Ajit Gyanchand Jain 07827804 June 19, 2017 NA

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is
neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report of the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

CS Anjali Sangatani

Practicing Company Secretary

Date : August 28, 2021 ACS No.: 41942 COP No.: 23630
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: A041942C000870440
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Annexure - C2

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMNTS
UNDER THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

To,

The Members of

AIRAN LIMITED

408 Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandst,
C.G Road Ahmedabad - 380006.

We have examined all the records of AIRAN LIMITED (AIRAN) (CIN L74140GJ1995PLC025519) for the
purpose of certifying the compliance of the disclosure requirements and conditions of Corporate Governance by
AIRAN, for the year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”).

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STATEMENT

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the listing regulations is the
responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant
records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the
Listing Regulations.

AUDITORS’RESPONSIBILITY

Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing
Regulations. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable
assurance whether the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

We have obtained all the information and explanations to the best of our knowledge and belief, which were
necessary for the purpose of this certification. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
our examination of the relevant records and the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the
Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31,2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS Anjali Sangatani

Practicing Company Secretary

Date : August 28, 2021 ACS No.: 41942 COP No.: 23630
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: A041942C000870462
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Annexure - D
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be
undertaken and areference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and Projects or programmes:

Longevity and success for a company comes from living in harmony with the context, which is the community and
society. The main objective of CSR Policy of the Company encompasses the ideas of corporate governance, sustainable
wealth creation, corporate philanthropy and advocacy for the goals of the community. The projects undertaken will be
within the broad framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Our CSR initiatives focus on CSR projects as
provided under Schedule VII. The Company has framed its CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed on the Company’s website and may be accessed at
https:/ /airanlimited.in/docs/CSR_FINAL.pdf.

2. The Composition of CSR Committee as at March 31, 2021:

Name of Director | Designation | Designation of Committee
Mrs. Poonam Agrawal Executive Director Chairman

Mrs. Bhoomika Gupta Independent Director Member

Mrs. Sarita Aggarwal Independent Director Member

The Details of attendance of each of the Members of the Committee and dates of meetings are provided in the report on
Corporate Governance in separate annexure.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: ¥768.59 Lakh

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as initem 3 above):315.37 Lakh
Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
a) Totalamounttobe spent for the financial year: ¥15.37 Lakh

b) Amountunspent,ifany: Mannerin which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sr. CSR Sector in Projects or Amount Amount Spent Cumulative Amount Spent:
No.| Project or which the Programmes Outlay (budget) | on the Projects or | expenditure up Direct or through
activity Project is (1) Local area or | Project or Programmes to the implementation
identified covered other (2) Specify | Programmes Sub-heads: reporting agency
the State and wise (1) Direct period
District where Expenditure
Projects or (2) Overheads
Programmes were
undertaken
1 Donation to Various Ahmedabad % 850,000 Direct % 850,000 Direct
Airan sectors Expenditure
Foundation covered by % 850,000
Schedule
VII of the
Companies
Act, 2013
2 Covid Various Ahmedabad %7,00,000 Direct %7,00,000 Direct
Relief sectors Expenditure
Work covered by Rs. 7,00,000
Schedule
VII of the
Companies
Act, 2013

6. In case the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any
part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amountin its Board Report:

NIL
Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : August 28, 2021 Poonam Sandeepkumar Agrawal Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Executive Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 01712128 DIN 02566480
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ANNEXURE - E

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
For the financial year ended March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

AIRAN LIMITED (CIN: - L74140GJ1995PLC025519)
Reg Off:- 408 Kirtiman Complex B/H Rembrandt,
C.G Road Ahmedabad -380006

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Airan Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that, in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on March 31,2021 according to the provisions of:

i.  TheCompanies Act,2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under as applicable;
ii. ~ TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Overseas Direct Investment;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(“SEBI Act”):-

a) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Listing Agreement entered with National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE);

vi.  Otherlawsapplicable specifically to the Company, namely:
(@) ThelInformation Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;
vii. TheSecretarial Standardsissued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules made thereunder,
Regulations, guidelines etc. mentioned above.

The list of few of General laws applicable to the Company which are set out in the Annexure - I. We have relied on the
representation made by the Company and its officers for system and mechanism framed by the Company for
compliances of the said General laws.

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Standards are not applicable
tothe Company,

i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue &
Share Transfer Agent. However, the Company has appointed KFin Technologies Private Limited as Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

ii.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
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iii. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

iv.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

v.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

vii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director, Independent
Directors and Woman Director in accordance with the act. The changes in the composition that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that-

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For SCS and Co. LLP
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique Code : L2020GJ008700

Anjali Sangatani

Partner
Place : Ahmedabad ACS No.: 41942 C P No.: 23630
Date : August 28, 2021 UDIN: A041942C000850068
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List of major General Acts applicable to the Company

The Information Technology Act, 2000
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Annexure I

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, as

amended from time to time

The Shops and Establishment Act/Rules, as amended from time to time
The Indian Contract Act,1872, as amended from time to time

The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (“TP Act”)

The Registration Act, 1908

The Specific Relief Act, 1963

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Apprentices Act, 1961

The Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 (“WCA”)

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881, as amended from time to time

The Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996, as amended from time to time

The Trade Marks Act, 1999 under Intellectual Property Law, as amended from time to time

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

The Gujarat Stamp Act, 1958, as amended from time to time
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Annexure II
To,
The Members,
AIRAN LIMITED
Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, on the
records and documents provided by the Management of the Company, to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices followed by me provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Wehave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4.  The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SCS and Co. LLP
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique Code : L2020GJ008700

Anjali Sangatani

Partner
Place : Ahmedabad ACS No.: 41942 C P No.: 23630
Date : August 28, 2021 UDIN: A041942C000850068

Annual Report 2020-21 Statutory Reports Page | 64 of 156



¢HAIRAN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
OVERVIEW OF THEINDUSTRY

In 2020, the world economy shrank by 4.3 per cent, over two and half times more than during the global financial crisis of 2009.
The modest recovery of 4.7 per cent expected in 2021 would barely offset the losses of 2020, said the latest World Economic
Situation and Prospects released by the UN.

In South Asia, the pandemic severely impacted most economies in the region, dragging down average GDP by -8.9 per centin
2020.India, in particular, suffered its largest economic decline in history, with output falling by nearly 10 per cent in 2020.

However, while the multiple waves of the pandemic threatened lockdowns and downside risks, the IT & BPM sector is still
driving growth to make up for some of the shortfalls. According to National Association of Software and Service Companies
(Nasscom), the Indian IT industry’s revenue is estimated to reach US$ 194 billion in FY21, an increase of 2.3% YoY. The sector
is the largest employer within the private sector. According to Gartner estimates, IT spending in India is estimated to reach
US$ 93 billionin 2021 (7.3% YoY growth) and further increase to US$ 98.5 billion in 2022.

In Budget 2021, the government has allocated Rs. 53,108 crore (US$ 7.31 billion) to the IT and telecom sector. The IT & BPM
industry’s revenue is estimated at US$ 194 billion in FY21, an increase of 2.3% YoY. The domestic revenue of the IT industry is
estimated at US$ 45 billion and export revenue is estimated at US$ 150 billion in FY21.

OURBUSINESS

Airan Limited is a multi-national company providing IT enabled Services, Software as a Service, Consultation services,
Application Outsourcing, Network Services, BPO, Platform Solutions, E-KYC, Banking Operations, Contact-Centre Services
and various other value-added services. Our vision is to build a global and esteemed organisation delivering the best-of-
breed business solutions by leveraging technology that is delivered by the best-in-class workforce. We are guided by our
value system which motivates our attitudes and actions. Our core values are Client value; Leadership by example; Integrity;
Transparency; Fairness; Information Security and Excellence.

Our strategic objective is to build a sustainable organisation that provides supreme and timely solutions to our clients, while
creating growth opportunities for our employees, generating profitable growth for our investors and contributing to the
community that we operate in.

Airan Limited has made rapid inroad into areas which hold immense potential for the future and we are optimistic with our
strategies. India is well-placed to drive the IT and ITeS related services. India’s unique value proposition as the world’s
number one outsourcing destination continues to hold good at the back of its strong economic value propositions. The
country provides access to largest technical talent pool, ensuring volume, high quality and faster time to the market.

TALENT ACQUISITION, ENGAGEMENT & RETENTION

As the financial year began in April 2020, the effects of the pandemic also simultaneously knocked on everyone’s doors. The
first wave came with an overwhelming feeling of uncertainty. While many organisations cut down their team by decreasing
their staff strength. Airan Limited on the other hand has acquired a lot of talented individuals and deployed them in various
processes across several states in India as well as abroad in countries like United Arab Emirates and Thailand.

We have an employee-first approach which proactively enhances our employee engagement. Our model of talent
engagement is focussed on health and well-being, career development, lifelong learning, job satisfaction, social collaboration,
positive working environment, and upholding the values of Airan Limited.

Covid-19 Preventative Best Practices

As the Novel Coronavirus continues to become more potent, it is imperative for all of us to take all the possible measures to
prevent transmission, reduce the impact of outbreaks and implement control measures. Airan Limited has been following
and complying with all of the various advisories issued by the Government of India, including the Ministry of Health and
Family Welfare (MoH&FW) and Department of Personnel and Training.

e We ensure proper cleaning and frequent sanitisation of the workplaces, particularly of the frequently touched surfaces
(e.g., desks, railings etc.) and daily wiping of the frequently touched objects (e.g., telephones, keyboards etc.)

¢  Hand sanitising stations are set-up across all offices and there is a regular supply of soap and running water in all
washrooms.

e All employees, suppliers, and visitors are subject to mandatory diagnosis of essential indicators, namely: thermal
reading, oxygen saturation, and heart rate at all entry and exit points of all the office premises. Further a disinfection
tunnel is installed at the entry / exit point of the head-office.

*  Ensuring social distancing at the office premises by implementation of staggered lunch breaks and keeping one
workstation unoccupied alternatively till the time of the lockdown.

o The staff is enabled to work from home wherever feasible.

o There is a periodical distribution of face-masks, face-shields, hand-sanitizers, and homeopathic immunity boosters to all
theemployees. As well as distribution of rubber gloves to employees handling physical cheques/cash and parcels.
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Airan Foundation Canteen

Airan Foundation/Limited has opened a fully funded new Canteen at the Head Office of Airan Limited. The Canteen serves
various beverages, snacks and refreshments. The principal objectives behind the opening of this canteen are:

*  Exclusive canteen for employees only and to prevent employees from going to crowded areas unnecessarily.
e Therates forall theitems are subsidised to bring financial ease for all employees.

e The canteen is completely hygienic through regular cleaning and sanitisation, clean and filtered water, and
uninterrupted utilities. This ensures the well-being of the employees and prevents employee’s unnecessary exposure to
unhygienic food places.

Airan Health Log Portal

The state-of-the-art “tele/web-health” system of Airan Limited called ‘Airan Health Log Portal” which was designed
especially for COVID-19 last year is in full effect and has been developed further to include previous doctor reports, Covid-19
Test reports and vaccination certificates. This has enabled the efficient mapping and recordation of the regular reporting of
body temperature and symptoms, previous reports, and vaccination status followed by telephonic/web-consultations for
required personnel in-order-to assess the risk of exposure to COVID-19.

Vaccination Camp

At Airan Limited, we have initiated a 100% Vaccination Policy wherein Government Provided Vaccination is mandatory for
all existing and new employees.

In the beginning of 2021: The Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi along with the Central Government initiated the
World’s Largest Free Vaccination Campaign across the country. The vaccines are available free of the cost in government-run
vaccination centres and the Government of India is providing free vaccination to all the states, this makes it easier for our
employees across India to easily avail this important opportunity.

While the government is continuing the vaccination drive, Airan Foundation had also held a Free Vaccination Camp for all
employees at the Airan Limited Head Office in Ahmedabad. The vaccination was performed by the Amdavad Municipal
Corporation (AMC).

Life-Insurance

Airan Foundation/Limited have initiated a very attractive opportunity to all the top-level management of the company by
offering a life-insurance term plan to them. At Airan, we understand that the well-being of our employees is directly
consequential to the well-being of their families and life insurance gives the team a financial confidence that their family will
have financial stability in their absence.

Regularand Periodical Rewards and Recognition (R&R)

The empowering culture of Airan Limited, philosophy of investing in people, career growth opportunities, and progressive
HR policies have resulted in consistently high retention levels and developed a strong employer brand.

As companies struggle to find a way to deal with the global economic slowdown, the simple act of recognizing an employee in
ameaningful and memorable way is the missing link that can heighten the productivity levels, lower employee turnover, and
create a sense of belonging.

Rewards and recognition signify the appropriate acknowledgment, appreciation, and prompt incentivization of an
employees’ effort.

The Rewards and Recognition winners are selected through a merit-based system and determined by regularity, individual
performance and leadership skills.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Fiscal Year 2020 had entailed many exciting opportunities for Airan Limited. The most prominent one was winning the
contract from Standard Chartered Bank to provide IT enabled Services in 34 countries including India. These services include
transaction processing, business process management and several other value-added services. This global mandate is an
incredible milestone for our company as we have the opportunity to serve the bank around the world and expand our horizon
bothin terms of services as well as presence.

Furthermore, Airan has seized several opportunities nationally by initiating new services as well as providing existing
services to new clients. These services include but are not limited to Doorstep Banking Support Services, Contact Centre
Services, Customer Onboarding, Transaction Processing, Software as a Service Offerings, and Software Development.

At Airan Limited, we believe that competitive analysis involves clear-eyed judgment, ruthless introspection, and unflinching
candor. It involves what some philosophers call Methodic Doubt — test all assumptions, question hypothesis, seek answers.
This enables us to assess our competitive position through which we can utilise our strengths, and offset our weakness. Upon
making an efficient assessment, our management has envisioned Airan Limited as one of the world’s leading IT & ITeS
Company by harnessing threats into opportunities. We believe that a vision is paramount for success. The principal reason
that a vision of success —i.e., a goal — is so important is that it enables us to communicate, discuss and negotiate ideas and
qualities that are otherwise intangible.
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These goals of our company have aligned with the vision of a few like-minded people in the industry and they have merged
their business with Airan to fuel growth and innovation like in the last Financial Year Synergy Cash Management Services
Pvt. Ltd. and Synergy Datalinks Pvt. Ltd. This financial year, another such prominent regional company is Sri Sairam
Enterprises (SSRE). Headquartered at Vijayawada, AP the company has a strong field presence in its region as well as several
processing centres across the South-East region of India. This merging of business will empower us to seize the opportunities
in the South-East Region with a robust set-up.

In line with the above, Airan Limited has acquired Quadpro ITeS Limited, an IT enabled services provider headquartered at
Bangalore, KA. Quadpro is an innovative company with presence across India especially a strong hold in the Southern
Region of India. Along with a resident team of developers, Quadpro has excellent research capabilities and a consequent
scope for innovative services that can be offered to the BFSI Industry.

The fiscal year of 2022 poses several intimidations with multiple waves of the pandemic. The client market segments we serve
are facing challenges as well as opportunities that have arisen from the COVID-19 pandemic and its resulting impact on the
economy. We intend to continue channelling the uncertainty and threats of the pandemic into positive and worthwhile
decisions that will bring us closer to our goals.

INTERNAL CONTROLSYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control including internal financial controls. Company has an
Audit Committee headed by an Independent director, inter-alia, to oversees company’s financial reporting process,
disclosure of financial information, and reviewing the performance of statutory and internal auditors with management. The
internal control system, including internal financial controls of the Company, is monitored by an independent internal audit
team, which encompasses examination/ periodic reviews to ascertain adequacy of internal controls and compliance to
Company’s policies. The committee also looks into related party transactions, preventive controls, investigations, as well as
other areas requiring mandatory review as per applicable laws. The powers of Committee, inter-alia, include seeking
information from any employee, obtaining outside legal or other professional advice, and investigating any activity of the
Company within the committee’s term of reference.

FINANCIALPERFORMANCE WITHRESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the company has shown remarkable development which can be ensured by comparison of
its Net Profit which is Rs. 55,700,000. in the year 2020-2021 as compared to previous year which is Rs. 63,932,000 in the year

2019-2020.
RATIO ANALYSIS
PARTICULARS | FY 2018-19 | EY 2019-20 | FY.2020-21
Revenue 5,163.30 5,959.37 6,855.41
EBIT 675.95 874.85 836.43
PAT 414.36 672.42 588.57
NETWORTH 7,501.21 8,174.31 8,900.97
CAPITAL EMPLOYED 8971.98 9483.22 9647.74
ROCE 7.53% 9.23% 8.67%
Registered office: For and on behalf of Board of Directors
408, Kirtiman Complex, B/h. Rembrandt Building, Airan Limited
C. G. Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380006. CIN: L74140GJ1995PLC025519
Date : August 28, 2021 Sandeepkumar Vishwanath Agrawal
Place : Ahmedabad Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 02566480
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of Airan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Airan Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or hasno realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate toprovide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner thatachieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
tobear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that :

a) Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.
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¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)  Onthebasis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, asamended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company toits directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations giventous:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we givein “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

3. Withrespect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to
its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid
to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented uponby us.

For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W

CA. Aditya Deora

Partner
Date : June 26, 2021 Membership No. 160575
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573

Annual Report 2020-21 Page | 72 of 156



¢HAIRAN

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors” Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
members of Airan Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Airan Limited (‘the company) as of March 31, 2021
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards of Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls. These Standards and the Guidance Notes required that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systems over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining and understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depends on the auditors” judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion of the
company’sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company;

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W

CA. Aditya Deora

Partner
Date : June 26, 2021 Membership No. 160575
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members
of Airan Limited of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the
Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

i.  Inrespectofthe Company’s fixed assets:

a. TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

b.  The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of its fixed assets in a phased manner which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with
this program, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year. According to information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet
date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed
assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

ii. =~ The Company is in the business of providing Business Auxiliary & Support services and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted unsecured loans to any body
corporate, covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which.

a. The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

b.  Theschedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts of
principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.

c.  Thereisnooverdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31,2021
and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the
order isnotapplicable to the Company.
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vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

b.  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’” State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable except for the following:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount Period Forum Where

(Rs. In Lakhs) Dispute is Pending
The Income Income Tax 103.84 Assessment Year Commissioner of
Tax Act, 1961 2017-18 Income Tax (Appeals)

viii. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or a bank or
government and has notissued any debentures during the year during the year.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
hence reporting under Clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x.  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

xii. The Company is not a nidhi company and hence, reporting under Clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
paid convertible debentures and hence, reporting under Clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W

CA. Aditya Deora

Partner
Date : June 26, 2021 Membership No. 160575
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and as stated)

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particul Not As at As at
articuiars OteS BVt kI WLiv sl  March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 5,896.55 5,547 .45
Capital work in progress 4 - 9.14
Intangible assets 5 21.01 28.31
Financial Assets
i)  Investments 6 588.85 24221
Total non-current assets 6,506.41 5,827.11
Current assets
Financial Assets
i)  Investments 6(b) 118.16 76.43
ii) Trade receivables 9 1,926.09 1,490.47
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 27.49 10.52
iv) Other Bank Balances 10 52.98 122.18
v) Loans 7 1,663.27 2,077 .46
vi) Other financial assets 8 396.85 329.94
Other current assets 11 76.84 58.75
Total current assets 4,261.68 4,165.75
Total assets 10,768.09 9,992.86
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 2,500.40 2,500.40
Other Equity 13 6,098.79 5,550.32
Total Equity 8,599.19 8,050.72
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 14(a) - 600.33
Employees Benefit Obligation 15 43.03 -
Deferred tax liabilities 16 675.20 706.79
Total non-current liabilities 718.23 1,307.11
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilitie
i)  Borrowings 14(b) 581.43 163.71
ii) Trade Payables 17 181.77 58.59
iii) Other financial liabilities 18 0.27 1.17
Other current liabilities 19 687.21 411.55
Total current liabilities 1,450.67 635.02
Total Liabilities 2,168.90 1,942.14
Total Equity And Liabilities 10,768.09 9,992.86
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants AIRAN Limited
Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W
CA Aditya Deora Sandeepkumar Agrawal Poonam Agrawal
Partner (Chairman & Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
M. No. 160575
UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573
Date : June 26, 2021 Krunal Jethva CS Stuti Kinariwala
Place : Ahmedabad (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Annual Report 2020-21 Page | 76 of 156



¢HAIRAN

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and as stated)

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particul Not AT EREIEE N For the year ended
articuiars OleS IS VRN IWIVAl  March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations 20 6,286.30 5,666.65
Other income 21 182.08 149.07
Total income 6,468.38 5,815.72
Expenses
Direct expenses 22 1,547.26 1,577.10
Employee benefits expense 23 3,282.34 2,486.12
Finance costs 24 46.52 70.78
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5&6 417.42 401.15
Other expenses 25 456.56 520.15
Total expenses 5,750.10 5,055.30
Profit before tax 718.29 760.42
Tax expense
Current tax (190.00) (250.00)
Deferred tax 28.71 128.90
(161.29) (121.10)
Profit for the year 557.00 639.32

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset (11.40) -
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2.87 -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Period (8.53) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 548.47 639.32
Earnings per share: (Nominal value per equity share of Rs. 2 each)

Basic and diluted 13 0.44 0.51
Significant accounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants AIRAN Limited

Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W

CA Aditya Deora Sandeepkumar Agrawal Poonam Agrawal
Partner (Chairman & Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
M. No. 160575

UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573

Date : June 26, 2021 Krunal Jethva CS Stuti Kinariwala
Place : Ahmedabad (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and as stated)

a. Equity share capital

Note 12

Balance as at 1 April 2019 1,250.20
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 -
(Issue of Bonus Shares in ratio of 1:1) 1,250.20
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,500.40
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,500.40
b. Other equity Note 13

Reserves and surplus Total

Share premium Retained earnings

Balance at 1 April 2019 1,426.61 4,734.59 6,161.20
Profit or loss and Total comprehensive income (net of tax) - 639.32 639.32
for the period
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners
Utilized during the year for issue of bonus shares (1,250.20) - (1,250.20)
Balance at 31 March 2020 176.41 5,373.91 5,550.32

Reserves and surplus Total

Share premium Retained earnings

Balance at 1 April 2020 176.41 5,373.91 5,550.32
Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021
Profit or loss for the period (net of tax) - 557.00 557.00
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - (8.53) (8.53)
Total comprehensive income - 548.47 548.47
Balance at 31 March 2021 176.41 5,922.38 6,098.79

Significant accounting policies (Note-3)

The notes referred to above form are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For DEORA MAHESHWARI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants AIRAN Limited

Firm’s Registration Number: 123009W

CA Aditya Deora Sandeepkumar Agrawal Poonam Agrawal
Partner (Chairman & Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
M. No. 160575

UDIN: 21160575AAAACE9573

Date : June 26, 2021 Krunal Jethva CS Stuti Kinariwala
Place : Ahmedabad (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and as stated)

Particulars

A. CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY :
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX :
Adjustment For :
Depreciation
FV Adjustment on current investments
Finance Cost / Interest Paid
Interest Income
Other Adjustments
(Profit) / Loss on Disposal of Property Plant & Equipment

Operating Activity Before Working Capital Changes : (a)

Adjustment For :

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets

Operating Activity After Changes in Current Assets : (b)

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial & Other Current Liabilities

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in Provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income Tax Paid: (‘c)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities : (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

‘ Notes

¢»>AIRAN

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

Investment in Subsidiaries (Note 6(a))
(Purchase)/ Sale of Current Investments
Interest Income

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities : (B)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Short Term Borrowings
(Repayment of) Long Term Borrowings
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities : (C)

Net Increase/(D